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2007/2008 Annual Report

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 11/F, Harbour Centre, 25
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

e foundation piling

e electrical and mechanical ["E&M”) engineering and building
construction

*  machinery leasing and frading
®  property investment and management

*  property development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs"] {which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and certain
equity investments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded fo the nearesf thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2008. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant infercompany fransactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held
by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements:

HKFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HKAS 1 Amendment

Capital Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transaction

Except for HKAS 1 Amendment and HKFRS 7, the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int @, HK(IFRICHInt 10 and HK(IFRICnt 11 has had no

material effect on the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2008.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the significance of the Group's financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those
financial instruments. The new disclosures are included throughout
the financial statements. While there has been no effect on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group, certain
comparative information has been included/revised where
appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 41 to the financial statements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendment

Amendments fo HKFRS2 Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations !

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Business Combinations 2

HKFRS 8

Operating Segmentfs

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements '

HKAS 23 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 2

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments

Putiable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation |

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

Service Concession Arrangements *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HKAS 19: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Inferaction *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

-
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The amendments to HKFRS 2 restrict the definition of “vesting condition”
fo a condition that includes an explicit or implicit requirement fo provide
services. Any other conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have to
be taken info account fo defermine the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In the case that the award does not vest as a result of a failure to
meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control of either the entity
or the counterparty, this must be accounted for as a cancellation. The
Group has not entered into share-based payment schemes with non-
vesting conditions attached and, therefore, does not expect significant
implications on ifs accounting for share-based payments.

The revised HKFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the accounting
for business combinations that will impact on the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs,
and future reported results. The revised HKAS 27 requires that a change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity
fransaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on goodwill,
nor will it give rise fo a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as
the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes infroduced by the revised
HKFRS 3 and the revised HKAS 27 must be applied prospectively and
will affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating segments,
based on information about the components of the entity that is available
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources fo the segments and assessing their performance. This standard
also requires the disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group's major customers.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 1 has been revised to separate owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity will include only details of
fransactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented
as a single line. This standard also introduces the statement of
comprehensive income: it presents all items of income and expense
recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised
income and expenses, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing costs
when such costs are directly affributable fo the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group's current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the revised standard, the
revised standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments permitted a range of entities to
recognise their capital as equity rather than as financial liabilities, and
required additional disclosures for puttable financial instruments
classified as equity. The amendment reinforces that this is a limited scope
exception to the definition of a financial liability and no analogies should
be made to these requirements.

HK(IFRIC)Int 12 requires an operator under public-fo-private service
concession arrangements fo recognise the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as a financial asset
and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms of the contractual
arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an operator shall
apply existing HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights
arising from service concession arrangements by which a government or
a public secfor entity grants a confract for the construction of infrastructure
used fo provide public services and/ or for the supply of public services.
As the Group currently has no such arrangements, the interprefation is
unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

H
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23 EEMEBERERZEBHBIR 2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HK(IFRICHnt 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted to customers
as part of a sales transaction are accounted for as a separate
component of the sales transaction. The consideration received in the
sales fransaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits and the
other components of the sale. The amount allocated fo the loyalty award
credits is determined by reference fo their fair value and is deferred until
the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise extinguished. The
Group has not introduced any customer loyalty award credits
arrangement.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS 19
Employee Benefits on the amount of a refund or a reduction in future
contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can be
recognised as an asset, in particular, when a minimum funding
requirement exists.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has
concluded that the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8 may
result in new or amended disclosures. In respect of the remaining new
and revised HKFRSs, it is not yet in a position fo state whether they would
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are sfated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group's inferesfs in associates are sfated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than properties held for sale,
properties under development, invenfories, construction confract assets,
financial assets and investment properties), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use and ifs fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit fo which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the income sfatement in the period in which it arises in those expense

categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill (Cont'd)

An assessment is made at each reporting dafe as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exisfs, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to defermine the recoverable amount of an asset, but not
fo an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
defermined [net of any depreciation/amortisation] had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is credited fo the income statement in the period in which
it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related fo the Group if:

(a]  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more infermediaries,
(i] controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an inferest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c] the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or [d): or

(fl  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of

the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
atfributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rafes used for this purpose are

as follows:

Building 5%
Equipment and machinery 10%-33/4%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33'4%

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the
income sfatement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are inferests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold inferest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and,/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for adminisfrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured inifially af cost, including fransaction cosfs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated af cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly affributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the balance sheet date are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the balance sheet at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, interest
capitalised during the period of development and other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable value is
defermined by reference fo the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and costs of
marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Leased assets

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets fo the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged fo the income stafement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease ferms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assefs and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income stafement on the
straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
renfals payable under the operating leases are charged fo the income
statement on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly atiributable fransaction cosfs.

The Group determines the classification of ifs financial assets after inifial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits fo purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assefs within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent financial
assets held for frading. Financial assets are classified as held for frading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses
on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
inferest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an infegral part of the effective inferest rate and
fransaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair valve

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is defermined by reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business af the balance sheet date. For investments where
there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions: reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses af each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on loans and receivables, which are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate [i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition|. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement. loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal dafe.

In relation fo trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence [such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor] that the Group will not be able to
collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The
carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

A
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(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset, but
has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “passthrough” arrangement; or

*  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or [b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised fo the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required fo repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-setiled option or similar provision| on
the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-setiled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent
of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the fransferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured af
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated af cost.
The related interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted
for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly affributable
fo the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except
when such contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and [ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the first-in, first-out basis,
and nef realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract cosfs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred fo date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from a contract customer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo a contract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and af banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive] has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to seftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income fax is recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current fax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the
faxation authorities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor faxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, where the
fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assetfs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, deferred tax
assefs are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply o the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists fo sef off current tax assets against current fax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same faxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a)  From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building construction
confracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

On the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales contracts;

(c]  From machinery trading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(d)  Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms;

[e)  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
(f)  Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective inferest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument fo the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

[g) Dividend income

When the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who confribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equily insfruments ("equity-setiled fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is defermined by an external valuer using a binomial model. In
valuing equity-seftled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Share-based payment fransactions (Cont'd)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the
"vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
fransactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are freafed as vesting irrespective of whether or nof the market condition
is safisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-sefled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it had
vested on the dafe of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave fo its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet
date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the
year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were held
separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Contributions under the Fund
were made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme [the "MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged fo the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes (Cont'd)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged fo the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assefs that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare inferim dividends. Consequently, inferim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling af the date of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken fo the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monefary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling af the balance
sheef date and, their income statements are translated info Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate component of
equity as the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
makes various judgements and estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade
receivables and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group were to deferiorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability fo
make payments, additional provisions may be required.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according fo the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are based on actual cost incurred
over the fofal budgeted cost. Corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered info and the date when the activity is complefed usually
fall into different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each construction contract as the contract progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in defermining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

-
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2007/2008 Annual Report

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rafes ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The fax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

For the pre-sale of properties under development, the tax authorities may
impose LAT ahead of the completion of transaction and revenue is
recognised. Accordingly, subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in Mainland China are subject to land
appreciation taxes. However, the implementation of these taxes varies
amongst various cities in Mainland China and the Group has not yet
finalised its land appreciation tax refurns with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and ifs related taxes. The ultimate tax defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.

The land appreciation tax prepaid for the deposits received from pre-sale
of properties under development imposed by the tax authorities had been
recorded in “Tax prepaid” and will be charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year when the related sales transaction is
completed. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which such
defermination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i} on
a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (i) on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject fo risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary details of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b]  the E&M engineering and building consfruction segment;
[c)  the machinery leasing and trading segment;

(d]  the property invesiment and management segment; and
(e} the property development segment.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenue is attributed
to the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

DEER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) #itEE D (b) Geographical segments
TREIREBHE_TZNSF The following table presents revenue and certain asset and
RZTETELF=A=+—HILF expenditure information for the Group's geographical segments for
B w8z WaERETE the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007
ERRAXZER -
3 GROUP
B 1§ TEEMLE G
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere n the PRC Consolidated
ZERNE CFRLE ZEENE CETLE CBENE CFELF ZBENF CITLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Tér  T#x  TEr  T#x  TEx  TEx  TEr Ti#x
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
P0G Segment revenue:
HEFIEEF  Solestoexemal
customers 859292 682437 A7 AN 525298 59833 97435 1895049 1305170
EtAEER . Other segment informotion:
AREE Segment assels 660,367 454372 123525 166,601 2906128 2369015 3,690,020 2,990,048
AREERAE  Bankovedroftsincluded in
LBRTER segment ossefs 8,443 1,104 - - - - 8,443 1,104
g Tofal assefs 668,810 455566 123525 166,601 2906128 2369015 3,698,463 2991242
EXRY Capilal expendiure 208,271 47 602 14059 28,264 5773 3,448 228,103 79,314

H
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5. Wi~ HtAREAF 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Woak (TRENAERE 2 25X 8) S8
BEMITIHABMBE 2 HETHE
BRERREETIRANER EEH#
BEMEEEMGUA HEDER
BEMGHSRA  HEREHEE
ZOERZWAREEEARRRE 1)
BARHEZMBE -

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering and building
construction contracts certified by independent architects or quantity
surveyors; income derived from machinery trading and property
management; renfal income from property and machinery leasing; and
income from the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all
significant intragroup transactions.

AEE WG HBAREN D

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

T
“EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Yres Revenue:
BT 1R Foundation piling 1,079,387 990,281
BEREETR E&M engineering and building construction 190,724 177,226
KEHERES Machinery leasing and frading 26,081 39,575
MERERER Property investment and management 100,999 97,840
MEER Property development 497,858 248
1,895,049 1,305,170
HAt e AR & F - Other income and gains:
MEWA Interest income 2,343 3,431
RERE Insurance claims 811 191
BTV ER ARG ZRHD Fair value gains on equity investments at
REZAVERAN fair value through profit or loss — 504
HEME  BER Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
REER 2 BEH and equipment 6,088 —
HE—BREMEZ BT Gain on disposal of an investment property 4,164 —
BEAEMN THHEERZ&F  Gainon prepaid land lease payments resumed 3,183 —
EXEN - HE Foreign exchange gains, net 1,814 —
H A, Others 2,688 3,609
21,091 8,735




BhE A

ARhFERN2BEEL

RITEEREXZHE

B BEERYEERL
ZHME (KF17)

BR A A A

REBZBRHRANENEHE GA)

THEBREER

il

ERREMN T HEER

T REFEERY
ZREBHFH

BERB RS

F2 Gl
KEERE
LFERBETR/

(BEEE)

B BB

(BRE=ME -HHS) :

TEk%®
EEBEERMN
BAREEBIHRK

2007/2008 F#

6. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly

repayable within five years

BHEMERARAAE
U 5 e R ik

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

less: Interest capitalised in properties under

development [note 17)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Depreciation

Recognition of prepaid land lease payments

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases of land and buildings

Rental of construction equipment

Auditors' remuneration:
Provision for the year
Underprovision/ [overprovision)
in the prior year

Employee benefits expense
[including directors’ remuneration - note 8):
Wages and salaries
Employee share option benefits
Pension scheme contributions

fizt
Notes

31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

GROUP

“BEN\F  —TItE
2008 2007
F#T FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
33,623 42,125
(14,025) (19,005)
19,598 23,120

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

=
2008 2007
871 FT
HK$'000 HK$'000
40,828 40,468
1,190 36
11,962 11,818
14,167 21,079
2,084 1,804

5 (45)

2,089 1,759
162,875 160,926
7,725 —
5,541 5,379
176,141 166,305
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31 March 2008 Z2ZNF=A=+—H

BREARF (&) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)
“EEN\F “TTtF
2008 2007
i3 FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
INEER IR,/ (BFI) - $58* Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net* (1,814) 484
B E 5 8R% Wirite-back of impairment of trade

ERR - FE receivables, net* (88) (505)
BEZRE Impairment of deposits — 430
HWoR/ (MR 2 EE) 7 E Wiite-down/reversal of write-down| of

ZAEREE inventories o net realisable value* 67 (94)
HERMBEETTME loss/|gain) on disposal and write-off of items of

HERRBEDZ property, plant and equipment*

BR/(BM)* (6,088) 3,073
HE—BIREME loss/|gain) on disposal of an investment

B8R/ (BF)* property* (4,164) 228
BHAENLHRAER Gain on prepaid land lease

ZBH* payments resumed * (3,183) —
BAFEFABRZRH Fair value losses/(gains) on equity investments af

RENTEER/ fair value through profit or loss, net*

(&7 - F8E* 3,380 (504)
EtEERE* Impairment of other assets* 20 —
—RBERAZ Provision for impairment of an amount due

RYRERE from an associate* 15 15
BELERO 2B Rental income from operating leases of

machinery (18,427) (13,529)
REMEZHEBNFE Net renfal income from investment properties (72,726) (68,574)
EHREZREBA Dividend income from listed investments (28) (11)
* FHeHECAEEGRABRERZ *  These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income and

[E St 8] T EMRA LR

IR -

gains” on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:
£E
GROUP
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FEr
HK$000 HK$'000
Be Fees:
WITEE Executive directors — —
BUFNTES Independent non-executive directors 360 360
BITESE2HMH S Other emoluments of executive directors:
HEAEWH - 5= 28 Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
Hh 28 R EWMH = allowances and benefits in kind 23,364 15,731
& B BB RE A Employee share option benefits 6,961 —
RAKEFTEMER Pension scheme contributions 72 72
30,757 16,163

FRN - REAAR 2 BRES GEB
NP BERERMNE34)  ETEERB
ARMASEBERE REERBERE -
DEBBREIATEDARLBHE
EUEREBHREBERANE
Mt AXFERBREZEBRER
IXEEHe 2 HE -

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further defails of which are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options which has been recognised in
the income statement over the vesting period, was defermined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. EEM= (&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
ENHENEUESHMeNT The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

B 2B E&
RENF® BRE

Salaries, =A B
allowances ~ Employee &t B3
and share Pension
ik benefits option scheme st
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total

FET FET TERT FET FET
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

“2ENF 2008

HITES: Executive directors:

REZERE Mr. Francis Cheung — 8,924 2,165 12 11,101

BEELE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor — 5,488 2,165 12 7,665

BB LA Mr. David Chien — 850 566 12 1,428

FHgE A Miss Jennifer Kwok — 2,500 661 12 3,173

HEBTE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 2,854 460 12 3,326

BRELE Mr. Wong Kay — 2,748 944 12 3,704

— B3 6961 72 30397
BUFEHITEE :  Independent non-execufive
directors:

BHEEEE M. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 120 — — — 120

B4 Mr. Chau Cham Son 48 — — _ 48

il ST S Mr. Tse Man Bun 120 — — — 120

EFHRLE Mr. lung Chee Ming George 72 — — — 72
360 - - - 360

st Total 360 23,364 6,961 72 30,757

e a3 2007

HOTES: Executive directors:

RuEELE Mr. Francis Cheung — 5,764 — 12 5,776

BHELE M:r. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor — 3,328 — 12 3,340

BBt Mr. David Chien — 813 — 12 825

FHE/NME Miss Jennifer Kwok — 1,778 — 12 1,790

HEREBLEE M:r. Chiu Chin Hung — 2,180 — 12 2,192

EHEL M. Wong Kay — 1868 - 12 1880

— 15,731 — 72 15,803
BUFHMITES . Independent non-executive
directors:

BEExRE Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 120 — — — 120

B Mr. Chau Cham Son 120 — — — 120

i S R Mr. Tse Man Bun 120 — — — 120
360 - - - 360

st Total 360 15,731 — 72 16,163

AEERN MEEEFNELARAERE There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo

ﬂ ERME 2 8 waive any remuneration during the year.
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IfuEeHZEE 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
RAFERBAEFE  AfUkaH 2 The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are dl
BEEHREARARES - HM S FI15H directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
P BT EES o note 8 above.
Bi1E 10. TAX
BEAENGRREARBBEE 2T Hong Kong profifs tax has been provided af the rate of 17.5% (2007:
JERT G 2175%(ZTFLF : 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
17.5%) {EH & o A BLHE fh ith [& e =R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BaNZHERRAERLEHR 2 calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the
BIT@MBE  REBERTEE  H2 Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
BREPIFE - pracfices in respect thereof.
£E
GROUP
—EENE ZTtF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REREN 2 HIBRE Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
R PRC:
BB Hong Kong 1,879 169
H Ao @ Elsewhere 59,218 13,999
61,097 14,168
FFEEBETR (BEEME) © Underprovision/(overprovision| in the prior year:
e PRC:
BE Hong Kong — 69
H 3 [= Elsewhere 459 (220)
459 (151)
BT E (H3#32) Deferred tax note 32) (860) (50,533
AFEZHERAY, (BH) B3 Total tax charge/(credit] for the year 60,696 (36,5106) o
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10. #E (&)

BRARAARRE RAEKE DR MEE
RN EER R B 2B AR
MZBBERXENERRRAE 2K
BRS/ (Be) cHEMT :

10. TAX (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable fo profit before tax using the
statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax
rate is as follows:

£8
GROUP

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BR 35 B & A Profit before tax 210,727 52,328

VOEEMEGTE 2 58 Tax at the statutory rates 46,968 13,609

ii‘mi ERBE Provision for land appreciation tax 17,105 —

KRS EBRER IR Fffects on opening deferred tax of

Z% 2 decrease in rates — (58,966)
L AT EIRE 2 R HIR Adjustments in respect of current fax

e 2 8% of previous periods 459 (151)

BARRBA Income not subject to tax (10,690) (2,800)

DAFHRHREZFX Expenses not deductible for tax 4,937 9,509

A HIEEE Tax losses utilised from previous periods (3,103) (2,297)

AERBIEER Tox losses not recognised 5,020 4,580

BASEERBEHE Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's effective rate 60,696 (36,5106)

ZHBERX/ (ER)

1. KD B REREEL SR

ARRIRUBREREEZHE-_ZEZ
NEZA=+—HLEFERRRBKE
BEGEERMNBERNDA ZEIE
5,098,000 L (Z T T+ F : )& 7
1,366,000/ 7T) (P4 5E35(b) °

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for

the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a loss of HK$5,098,000
(2007: profit of HK$1,366,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company [note 35(b)).
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12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
ZEENE T TLF
2008 2007
FHET TET
HK$000 HK$'000
A ER IR B — AR T A B Interim = HK1 cent (2007: Nil)
(ZZEZLF: \) per ordinary share 8,375 —
BRI 2 RERE —BREBR  Proposed final - HK1.5 cents
1581l (ZZTLF - 1.58() (2007: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 12,562 12,562
20,937 12,562

REFRZRPREBALARANHEHZ
BERBFERSHE -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. AATEBRRRELESREAER  13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

FHREABFIZBARREBBRK
RGN F E & 7 107,411,000 7T
(ZZZ+F 43,983,000 ) KR
REEND ETEBR837,465,903%
(ZZT T+ : 837,465,9030%) 5+ & °

BE_ZT)\FE=A=+—-HIEE
ZEREERFERAQAALER
B R PE A% F1107,411,0008 STt & o
STERMAZMET ST ERRE
AFRBRTEBRERE - NiTES
BERBFSMAZRE - ARBH
EZFERITEMABREREES
71,951, 14908 3% i IR 2 I F 1981 -

AR EEARRGEEERTE
fr BBE-TTLE=A=+-A
LEELFRESRBFRT -

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$107,411,000 (2007: HK$43,983,000), and the
837,465,903 (2007: 837,465,903 ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2008 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$107,411,000. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all share options into ordinary shares during the
yearof 1,951,149.

A diluted eamings per share amount for the year ended 31 March 2007
has not been disclosed as no potentially diluting events existed during
that year.




TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

S 05 ik e I

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 Z2ZNF=A=+—H

14, Y2 - HEBERRE

&8

ZFTN\F=A=1-R

KA
&)
AE
HE R
A%

RoFENFZAZ-R

ZithE
R -
£
REEHE

B
HE R
XA

R-2ENF=R=1-H

BEYE:
RoFENFZAZ-R

R-2ELF=R=1-H

2007/2008 Annual Report

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP
RERES BARKE ik
Equipment  Furniture AE B NERE
BF ond and Motor  Molor Leosehold st
Building  machinery fixtures ~ vehicles yacht improvements Total
fér  TEr  TEr  TErn  TEr  TEr  TExn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
31 March 2008
Cost:
Atbeginning of year — 676128 31383 17574 6,098 60530 791713
Additions 793 76848 3615 5,383 - 445 1821
Disposals and weoff — (44024)  (4706)  (2569) - [8478) (59777
Exchange realignment - 1,134 334 372 - 3,009 4,849
At 31 March 2008 N3 710086 30626 20,760 609 59513 85499
Accumuloted depreciation
ond impaiment:
Atbeginning of year — 562,186 26,063 13,199 6,098 52949 660,495
Depreciafion provided
during the yeor 382 34471 1,424 2,010 - 2,341 40,828
Disposals and write-off — (9348)  (4673)  (2.466) - (8,477)  (44964)
Exchange reclignment - 835 248 238 - 2940 4,261
At 31 March 2008 582 568,144 23062 12981 6,098 49753 660,620
Net book volue:
At 31 March 2008 27331 141942 7,564 7719 - 9,760 194,376
At 31 March 2007 - 113942 5320 4375 - 7581 131,218




14. Y1 - HERRE (H) 14.

E3L]

I e 31 March 2007

A Cost:
1) At beginning of year
ME Additions
& il 35 Disposals and write-off
B BE Exchange realignment

R-EE+F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2007

ZIHER Accumulated depreciation
BE - and impairment:
1) At beginning of year
rER Depreciation provided
nERB during the year
& R 35 Disposals and wite-off
EX AR Exchange realignment

W-EE+F=R=+—H At 31 March 2007
REFE Net book value:
R-EE+F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2007

W-EE F=A=+—H At 31 March 2006

AEEETEF REREECHEA
RITAAREBERERITEE KT
31) °

AREETREREEREBELLEHEY

HETFE=T  BENE-TERH
BT A 5 R I FE36(a)

oooroos i BB B A B A A
Yo 5 3 Wk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
GROUP
REREE HARKE BE
Equipment  Furniture RE BRE  NERE
and and Motor Motor  Leasehold @t
machinery fixtures vehicles yacht improvements Tofal

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

625,769 29,320 17,465 6,008 60,122 738,774

75,005 2,648 1,403 - 168 79314
25,100] [685) (1,433 - (800)  (28,018]
364 100 139 — 1,040 1,643

676,128 31,383 17,574 6,098 60,530 791,713

544,262 25,380 12,578 6,098 S1176 639,494

39,806 1,214 1913 — 1,535 40,468
(18,162 [614)  [1,366] - (755) (20,897
280 83 74 - 993 1,430

562,186 26,003 13,199 6,008 52,949 660,495

113,942 5,320 4,375 — /581 131,218

81,507 3,940 4,887 — 8,946 99,280

Certain of the Group's building, equipment and machinery were pledged
to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 31).

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 36(al to the financial statements.
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14. Y% - BBRRE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
AEERBRERNFERERZER The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for use
i o e 2= AR RE I H AR BE R 5T B BURL under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation and
EEEEBENT : impairment losses are as follows:
£8
GROUP
—EENE 2T HF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(BN Cost 92,374 110,515
RETE Accumulated depreciation (66,408) (73,1606)
ZEREEE Accumulated impairment losses (362) (887)
REFE Net book value 25,604 36,462
15. REW = 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
£H
GROUP
“EENE CZTTLF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REM 2z REE Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,122,780 1,075,150
IR Additions 6,007 17,919
HE Disposals (35,300) (19,030)
NTEEE Fair value changes 89 5,456
E N R Exchange realignment 117,084 43,285
2 : RELZREE Carrying amount at end of year 1,210,660 1,122,780
‘-'-"I -
S
p




15. WEME (&)

AEEZREVERATHGRA
EnfuamT

—EENFE=ZA=+—H

oooroos e B OREAE P PO E B A )
S 75 ik o B ik
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31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease

terms in the following geographical locations:

31 March 2008

H
PRC
&5 HithE HEt
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
REITHA Medium term leases 11,800 — 11,800
REAY long term leases — 1,198,860 1,198,860
11,800 1,198,860 1,210,660
—EEHF=ZRA=+—H 31 March 2007
H
PRC
&% Hitih @ o h
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
AT A Medium term leases 10,300 — 10,300
REHELY long term leases 35,300 1,077,180 1,112,480
45,600 1,077,180 1,122,780

AEEZREVEER -_TEN\F=
A=t BRHBIUEXSERYER
BB EETEERERARR
ARMSERRAEREREEENGE -
REMEDHRELEHNBETSE =
o BRMBE-THFBENYE
&M EE36(a) ©

AREETRENECERTRITE
RAXNEERHESE TRITEE ZEM
(M5E31) -

The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,

existing use basis, as af 31 March 2008, by Vigers Appraisal and

Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified

property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third parties

under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in

note 36(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as

security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group [note 31).
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16. AL mHEER

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

£H
GROUP

—BEN\F ZTTLF

2008 2007

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

REM 2z REE Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,437 1,473
FRNRE Additions during the year 109,892 —
FRRIE Resumed during the year (1,012) —
FREHR Recognised during the year (1,190) (36)
RELZREE Carrying amount at end of year 109,127 1,437

FFAEMEWREKIE - BARIE  Current portion included in other receivables,

K&l & 2 REE A prepayments and deposits (2,780) (36)
IR Non-current portion 106,347 1,401

T+ TR R TR 03

The leasehold land are held under a medium term lease and are situated in Hong

B WRREE - Kong.
17. BERHWE 17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
£E
GROUP

—EBENF —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
FEF Balance at beginning of year 700,598 469,379
AEERE Additions during the year 665,901 193,610
B2 E (HiiFe) Interest capitalised (note &) 14,025 19,005
HEEREREWE (H7723)  Tansfer to properties held for sale (nofe 23) (672,275) —
BN AR Exchange realignment 76,229 18,604
FREETF Balance at end of year 784,478 700,598
KEIER D Current portion (529,966) (199,930)
FEXRERE R Non-current portion 254,512 500,668
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19.

LW IE Y 2R &

R-ZZETE+ETF UOARK
160,000,0007T (18 & 7 177,536,000/
7T) REWERBEER 2 — Bt
A& A R 307,800,000 (18 E
$2341,535,000/8 L) © R B Wi —
HERARBAR-_ZEZNE—/F =+
NBFBEZBRPHEE -

By B A Bl A

LR - K

B R 2 R
RIE

—ERHAIER
REE E 2 7D

YNNI S
—ERHAIBR
REREZ#

FR - ERRETHBRR ZRERE
AR A E18 14,053,000/ T (Z 2T+
F :1,000,00087T) - RAAZEWE
NRIZFEREBER -

REER  MBLRRZRRRRI B
DA ZFAOREEARRE ° 5T A
RBEENRBDAGBZMBERAER
ARBREHN—FAERE - Mat A
FRBEEZLHMBLRGERFRBAR
HEERER —FREE IRA/E
THREMBRRI 2 BTG - 1B
AREFCEEEEEDTERS -

ARREAFETERMBERRRAM
E T2 AR AFEEXRF80,000,000/
T (ZZZ 4 ¢ 80,000,000%7T) -
{2 % MY B 2 A AT R U B B R E PR
FRERBILEERS -
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2007/2008 F#

DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND ACQUISITION

Deposit of RMB 160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$ 177,536,000) was
paid in December 2007 for the acquisition of a parcel of land in
Shenyang, the PRC, at a consideration of approximately
RMB307,800,000 [equivalent to HK$341,535,000). Further defails of
the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 28

January 2008.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG|
COMPANY
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, af cost 11,845 4,120
Amounts due from subsidiaries 841,969 829,132
Impairment (64,761) (50,708
777,208 778,424
Portion due within one year,
classified as current assets — (20,383
777,208 758,041
Amounts due fo subsidiaries (144,892) (119,990)
Portion due within one year
classified as current liabilities 144,892 119,990
789,053 762,161

During the year, impairment losses of HK$ 14,053,000 (2007:
HK$1,000,000) were recognised for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries as those subsidiaries had suffered losses for years.

At the balance sheet date, the amounts due from and to subsidiaries are
unsecured and inferestfree. The balances with subsidiaries included in
the current assets and current liabilities are repayable on demand or
within one year whereas the balances with subsidiaries included in non-
current assets are not expected fo be repaid within one year from the
balance sheet dafe and are considered as quasi-equity loans to those
subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of balances with the subsidiaries
approximate to their fair values.

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2007: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the
required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.

A

H




TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED 20072008 Annual Report

S 05 ik e I
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 Z2ZNF=A=+—H

19. WEBABIER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARBIZEFEMBRAAFEMT - Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
EBTR
B3l BREmBRA AREEEZ
RIS E-F 3:uF 1 RAEE REFDL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEXH
=g registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—EENF —ZTTLHF
2008 2007

ZA BB ERAEBRAA £ EEk2ET 100 100 REER
Tysan (Hong Kong] Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Limited HK$2 holding
RAMBETRAERRAT BB EBR 100 100 M EITHE
(Ktat1X%3) Hong Kong 51,000,000% 7T Foundation
Tysan Foundation limited BT RR piling

[notes 1 and 3) 3,000,000 & 7T

Ordinary

HK$51,000,000

Deferred

HK$ 3,000,000
FARE(RP)ARLA il EBR 100 100 M EATHE
(Kat 1) Macau  JEFTH 25,000 7T Foundation
Tysan Construction (Macau) Ordinary piling

Limited (note 1) MOP25,000
FARMEERR QA (HF3) s gL 100 100 BHEE
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong 10,000/ 7T Machinery
[note 3) BT hiring

200,000/ 7T

Ordinary

HK$10,000

Deferred

HK$200,000
FAMETRR (BEB)BRAF BB EBm2ET 100 100 HREEER
(Ftat1) Hong Kong Ordinary REZ AR
Tysan Contractors [Hong Kong] HK$2 Project management
Limited (note 1) and provision

of consultancy

services
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19. B ARIER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ARRAZEEMBARRENOT : (£)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBTR
Lty BREmBRAE AREELEZ
AR EEE RAEE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEXB
= registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
ZEENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FALNIRERAR BB EBm2ET 100 100 A& B 3 B IR
(Ktat1) Hong Kong Ordinary Site
Tysan Geotechnical Limited HK$2 investigation
[note 1)

FTEBBRIRERRAR N0 Rl 100 100 HHEE R
(Ktat1) Hong Kong 6,750,000/% 7T EE
Proficiency Equipment Limited Ordinary Machinery
[note 1) HK$6,750,000 hiring and
frading
FRETIREEBRAR BB Emm2ET 100 100 RETIRERE
(Ktat1) Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of
Proficiency Engineering Limited HK$2 engineering
[note 1) services
RIBER LA (Hat1) Bt LRk2ET 100 100 HWMEE R
Lion Bright Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary BEE
HK$2 Machinery
hiring and
frading
RAERBRAF (HF1X3) BiE EEBRI00ETT 100 100 hRER
Tysan Management Limited Hong Kong B 278 T Corporate
[notes 1 and 3) Ordinary management

HK$100

Deferred

HK$2
HIEER A A £ TEk2ET 100 100 hERE
Sun Sparkle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$2 financing
FRERRF BB TERET 100 100 TERE
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$ 1 financing
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19. B ARIERE (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ARRAZEBMBARFENT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBITR
ARy, BREMBRES ADREEZ
A REEE RAEE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEEB
= registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
ZEENF _—TTLH
2008 2007
ZAREZRBRAT BB TEm2ET 100 100 REZER
Tysan Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
RAMEZRRERRAA Bt TEk2ET 100 100 REZER
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
& Investment Limited HK$2 holding
RERERRAA BB LaR2ET 100 100 REER
Tysan Construction Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Company limited HK$2 holding
maRERRRAR (HE1) ) BER2ET 100 100 NEHRE
Faithmark Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$2 investment
Tremend Yield Limited BB Lm20E T 100 100 MERE
(Hrat1) Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$20 investment
“HEREARDA (K1) ) BER2ET 100 100 NEHRE
Trions Investment Limited (note 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Property
HK$2 investment
EEREARLDA (K1) BB LaR2ET 100 100 BEME
Sure Faith Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$2 holding
BEFEHEERAR (K1) ) BER2ET 100 100 REER
Duncan Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
(note 1) HK$2 holding
Dragonhill Limited (#5E1) BB EmR2ET 100 100 KRERR
(note 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
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ARRAZEEMBARREOT : (£)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBTR
Lty BREmBRAE AREELEZ
AR EEE RAEE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEXB
= registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—ERENF _—TTLF
2008 2007
MBRRERR AR (M) BB Tmm2ET 100 100 REZER
Great Regent Investments Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Limited (note 1) HK$2 holding
BMBRNA (K1) BiE LER1008 T 90 90 REZER
Great Prosper limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
(note 1) HK$100 holding
RAFRMERE (R2)ARAT REAR 15,500,000 7T 90 90 MEZR
(Kfat154) HAME,  US$15,500,000 Property
Tysan Property Development B A development
(Tianjin) Company Limited People’s
[notes 1 and 4) Republic
of China/
Mainland
China
RAFME(LB) BRAF REAR  20,500,0005% 7T 80 80 MEER
(Bt7F1%5) HME Us$20,500,000 Property
Tysan Land (Shanghai) B A development
Limited (notes T and 5) People’s
Republic
of China/
Mainland
China
FAIRERBERAR BB EpElbe 70 70 REZER
(Bt 1) Hong Kong 10,000 #& 7T Investment
Tysan Engineering Company Ordinary holding
Limited (note 1) HK$10,000

A
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19. B A RIHER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARARIZEEMBRRIFBOT - () Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:(Cont'd)
BBITR
iy BREmBRA AREEEZ
A REEE RAEE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEEB
= registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
ZEENE —TTALF
2008 2007

ZATIR(EE)BARRA BB el 70 70 RESKEK
(Ktzt 1) Hong Kong 12,000,000 7T AR5
Tysan Engineering (H.K.] Ordinary Provision of
Company limited (nofe 1) HK$12,000,000 electrical and
mechanical
services
ZAEHERLRA (K1) Bt LER100E T 60 60 —RES
Tysan Trading Company Hong Kong Ordinary General
Limited (note 1) HK$100 frading
ZEBRARDA (1) BB W00 T 60 60 REZER
China Garden Infernational Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Limited [note 1) HK$ 100 holding
AHBREBRRA (Bat1) Bt Lak2ET 60 60 REZER
Red Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
(note 1) HK$2 holding
BRRERRRA (B1) BB Tmm2ET 60 60 MERE
Hiat Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$2 investment
EMEER AR (FF1) Bt Lak2ET 60 60 REZER
Carriway limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
BERTARRAT (M) BB Emm2ET 60 60 REZER
Fund House Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Investment

HK$2 holding
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19. B A RIHER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARRIZTEMBRARFENT : (£) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
EBITR
Gty BREmBRE AREEGEZ
AR EERE R EE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  ofissued and fully of equity TEXB
=L registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—EENF —TTLF
2008 2007
WENXEE(LS) FEAR 500,000 7T 60 60 MRER
AR (HiF1k4) HME US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management A management
(Shanghai) Company Limited People’s
[notes 1 and 4) Republic
of China/
Mainland
China
LBERBREE FEAR 5,000,000% 7 60 60 MERE
HELLRRAT HEAME US$5,000,000 Property
(HtaE1k4) A 3t investment
Shanghai China Garden People’s
Infernational Real Estate Republic
Development & Management of China/
Company limited Mainland
[notes 1 and 4) China
LBREESFEME FEAR 10,000,000% 7T 60 60 MRER
HEKLARAT #HAE,  US$10,000,000 Property
(WtaE1%5) B A 3t development
Shanghai Changning Duncan People’s
Property Development Republic
Company limited of China/
[notes 1 and 5) Mainland
China
LBBEREIERRNTRAR FEAR 100,0005% 7T 60 60 AIES
(Ktat1k4) HFE US$100,000 74 AR5 s
Shanghai Duncan Property B A Provision of o
Consulting Company Limited People's property :
[notes 1 and 4] Republic consultancy |
of China/ services
Mainland

China
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19. B ARIERE (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ARRAZEBMBARFENT : (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBITR
iy BREmBRA AREEEZ
A REEE RAEE BRER DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued and fully of equity TEEB
= registration paid registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
—EBRENF —TTLF
2008 2007
Consco Investment Company BB EBR 58.25 58.25 KRERR
Limited Hong Kong 100,000/ 7T Investment
(HtE1) Ordinary holding
[nofe 1) HK$100,000
RAREIRERLDA] BiE EFEL 50 50 RUETR
(Bat1k2) Hong Kong 10,200,000 % 7T BETR
Tysan Building Construction Ordinary Provision of
Company limited HK$10,200,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
ZATERIBRARA BB Emm2ET 50 50 REEBFTR
(Mat 1 & 2) Hong Kong Ordinary BETIE
Tysan Project Management HK$2 Provision of
Limited (notes 1 and 2) building and
construction
works
ARAZE(RP) BR AR P Egal 50 50 RUETR
(Htat 1% 2) Macay  JRFJ# 25,000 7T BETRE
Mac Tysan Construction Ordinary Provision of
[Macau) Limited MOP25,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
REEBRKREBR AT FEAR 10,000,000 7T 46.6 46.6 MERE
(i1~ 2Kk5) HFE US$10,000,000 Property
Tianjin International Building B A investment
Company Limited People’s
[notes 1 + 2 and 5) Republic
of China/
Mainland

China



19. B RER (&)
ARRZEEMBARFENT « (8)

&
S S i
Place of
incorporation/

= registration

Name and operations

BEFRRA (Mit1) £

Sparkle Key Limited [nofe 1 Hong Kong
Fiat :

1. BBMEBRREE -

2. ADFEREZSEEC/ESRES
1’Fu”j7<57§ﬂ§m R ERR AR
REZMBER

3. EEBRMEEERRS REHEAQ
Tm”ﬁhEZ@ﬂtﬂmL%mZ
TR RFEEESFSE Y BEXRE
ZETIEZFRERIN) + FEERN
BREAEERE  mAREBREER
WHERNRE 2 ER B (ZERSB
ZEBBARRI - ZAR LB
BAEADEREREDARERL
% 2R ££10,00088 L) o
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBTR
graEmBRE/ ADREEZ
RAEE BRER DL
Nominal value Percentage
of issued and fully of equity TEXB
paid registered/ attributable to Principal
share capital the Company activities
ZEENF _—TTLH
2008 2007
LaEB1 BT 100 — REERK
Ordinary Investment
HK$1 holding

Notes:
1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. The Company has the power fo cast the majority of votes at meetings of the
board of directors of these entities and therefore they are regarded as
subsidiaries of the Company.

3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$ 1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings, no rights to
receive any surplus on a return of capital on a winding-up [other than the
amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

4. These entities are registered as whollyforeign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

5. These entities are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give defails
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

A
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20. BEE QT ER 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
E3E]
GROUP
—EENE 2T LF
2008 2007
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIEEERE Share of net assets — —
BERRZ R Amount due from an associate 264 249
264 249
B ORERE less: Provision for impairment (264) (249)
BERAZARBERR  RERE The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
Bl E R - fixed terms of repayment.
BERRBEF 2 REERERATENR The carrying amount of the balance with an associate approximates to its
e fair valve.
TEMERRZFHFBRT - Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:
AEERGZ
BEEEDL
Fris 2 81T Percentage
RIDFE ot i of ownership
Particulars FX 37 3t 36 interest TEXB
=L of issued Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held incorporation to the Group activity
NERERRRA BT BREE BB 50 KREZEKR
Turbo Dragon Investment Limited 18T Hong Kong Investment
Ordinary shares of holding
HK$1 each
FRILEERRIEVEAREED The above table lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of
IHE N R B A AE B TG B the directors, affected the Group's share of results of the associates or
ERAIABOESEZAEEBRER formed a substantial portion of the Group’s interests in associates. To give
Al - BEERA FVEMBEEATE details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

SIBATBRILK ° particulars of excessive length.
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

Listed equity investments
in Hong Kong, at market value

The above equity investments at 31 March 2008 and 2007 were

classified as held for frading.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Spare parts and others

£

GROUP
—EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
14,452 876

%

GROUP
—ET\F -FT+E
2008 2007
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
6,966 1,524
11,040 8,430
18,006 9,054
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REPEBEN
TiRZFHIE

FEEZAHKANEZE
AR B HE HERE TR
BEHERER

R B

2007/2008 Annual Report

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

24.

At beginning of year

Transfer from property under
development (nofe 17)

Properties sold during the year

Atend of year

%

GROUP
“BEN\F  TItE
2008 2007
FH7 T
HK$’000 HK$'000
11,289 11,468
672,275 —
(380,043) (179)
303,521 11,289

The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China and

are held under long ferm leases.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Amounts due from customers
for contract works

Amounts due fo customers
for contract works

Contract cosfs incurred plus
recognised profits less
recognised losses fo date

less: Progress billings received

and receivable

%
GROUP
“BEN\F  TItE
2008 2007
F#7 T
HK$’000 HK$'000
78,703 93,473
(166,399) (86,857)
(87,696) 6,616
2,900,427 2,496,893
(2,988,123)  (2,490,277)
(87,696) 6,616
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25. EWE B R 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES
7 6 B 00 BB A b 45 24 v e 2 B T The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
% RTFESEF YT HEEH standards. The average normal credit periods offered to trade customers
B90A M (EWEES B - ft/EE other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
ERETER c BN LXFIRE to periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
REE ENESESEARRAR the fact that the Group’s frade receivables relate to a large number of
EEW MEELCSRRANES Y diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
B ERESERS B S - Trade receivables are non-interestbearing.
5]
GROUP
—EENE —ZTtF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
W E B IR Trade receivables 284,224 262,895
WE Impairment (224) (313)
284,000 262,582
NERZHHREBEESE  BRE An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet date,
SEFNEEBR 2RRITOT based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:
P
EJL]
GROUP
—EENE TTLF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEWE 5 IR - Trade receivables:
90H A Within 90 days 187,933 179,695
91THZE180H 91 to 180 days 411 593
181H E360H 181 to 360 days 690 3,736
3608 A £ Over 360 days 419 89
189,453 184,113
FEW IR E & Retention receivables 94,547 78,469
284,000 262,582
BREZERFHEREATFENR The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate to their fair

4+

e values.
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5. BRWE Z R (&) 25.

FBERESEFRERBE2EHMT -
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o
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1HZ 90 BB
91HE180H WA H
181HZ 3608 M B 5

MEBMTEREZEBEFARLE
TERMPENELNTREFLAR -
EBMETENEBRFKEARAE
BEARERERURICHNBLE
FER - kBEELR  ARAER
R HAREEEEYESEAREHA
BEDGAT2HEE  AHELR
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ERREEERALANERSRESHE
s -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:
£8
GROUP

—EENF —ZTTLF

2008 2007

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 313 2,204
Impairment losses recognised 52 283
Impairment losses written back (140) (788)
Amount written off as uncollectible (1) (1,380)
Atend of year 224 313

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

E L]

GROUP
“EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 282,480 258,164
1 to 90 days past due 411 593
91 to 180 days past due 690 3,736
181 to 360 days past due 419 89
284,000 262,582

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate fo o
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.
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26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

58 NE
GROUP COMPANY
—EENE TTAF ZEINF _ITTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
FET TFET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F IR Prepayments and
kA deposits 72,310 36,911 169 129
H {th fE U FIE Other receivables 166,367 4,277 — —

FAEMERFTEARBARE
140,000,0007T (48 & 7 155,344,000/
) ZEGBNEEARR - UREERE
B FThEZEEZES T FARER
MEHLE -BFERBERE_ZEZ
NERABETAKE -

MELLEECBHILRRME - 5t
AbtiiEFceBEERY BITHE
WESL 2 RYWTRER -

238,677 41,188 169 129

Included in other receivables was an amount of RMB 140,000,000
[equivalent to HK$ 155,344,000) advanced fo the government authority
in Shenyang for arranging the relocation of previous residents of the land
in Shenyang to be acquired by the Group. The advance was
subsequently repaid fo the Group in May 2008.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assefs included in the above balances relate fo receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

&8
GROUP
—BENF —_TTLF
2008 2007
fitit FET TET
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000

E BT Time deposits (a) 28,768 39,830

SRR E Restricted cash (a), (b) 3,537 352,449

Be RRTER Cash and bank balances (a) 214,225 211,897

et Nofes:

(a) MEER  A%EE 213,780,000 [a]  Atthe balance sheet date, the total cash and bank balances of the Group
BT (ZZEZ L F 1 510,820,000% denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”) amounted to HK$213,780,000
TIZBReRBIEGEIAARE (2007: HK$510,820,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
(TAR®E]) BB - A\ARETTTEH currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control
RBMBEMER - AMBEIMNEEE Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
BOREE SERTEEERHATE Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
AEEEEBBEREETINEER currencies through banks authorised o conduct foreign exchange business.
2T BARBLBAREMER
ROTERREARTEFNEAEL Cash at banks eams inferest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
FHFIRBEDMAL c KEAEBFRA rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
ﬁT\HZTTy\HﬁﬁE H—RE=A one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements

CRTAEB SRS ERM of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective short term time deposit
iE I[Tzizﬁ 8 2 %5 B T R 1F AR R B rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate to
H)Zﬂ 8- ReRRTEFREAER their fair values. The bank balances and deposits are deposited with

NPERE - RITEFRITEFEA creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%@ﬁﬁﬁZ%%ﬁ%ZﬁE
7
b) REFEEEER  RIETRITERS [b)  Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain deposits received from

REBEEERTHEZIEUATE - £
AARNEEARYE -

pre-sale of properties under development in a designated bank account
can only be used for the construction of the relevant properties.
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28. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

WBEZEHHE  BNEZERNE An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the balance sheet date,
ERAZRRDITWOT ¢ based on the invoice date, is as follows:
5] A
GROUP COMPANY
ZEENE —TTLF ZBENF —TTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
TFET TET TFET TET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERNEZERX Trade payables:
30HA Within 30 days 82,236 112,769 6 10
31THZE9H 31 10 90 days 12,212 46,913 — —
91HZE180H 91 to 180 days 4,609 Q38 — —
180H A & Over 180 days 1,826 275 — —
100,883 160,895 6 10
R RE & Refention payables 22,894 19,081 — —
JEETRIE Accruals 98,190 58,169 657 516
221,967 239,045 663 526
ENESEFCEEHERLRATENR The carrying amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair
o values.
HiEAFRIE - SWRET & RFAU  29. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS IN
MIE ADVANCE
HENFBEAREE  FHERY Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
R—EA(ZZZ+F MEAR) - & one month (2007 two months|. The carrying amounts of other payables,
thEMNTIE BT RBWFHIEZ deposits received and receipts in advance approximate to their fair
REERAEATEBS values.

H
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30. HERRPYEXZCKAT S

FREWET 2
RERER
ZN-iE D)

FARHE D

AEERMENEZRBEEREY
X -HRATRPIAAHN  BUNE
EREANR  EFRAERAAKHE
Xff5le AREFARAEZAZFT LR
BRRE

BMERBEHERT K EER L
B - A 446,160,000 T &
9,258,000 T (= T T + & :
21,246,000/ 7T % 4,249,000/ ) © I
ERRIEBAGRAEERBRZ[EM
W HIE BRARERTS] RIEH
BIE] o
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30. DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM PRE-SALE OF PROPERTIES

UNDER DEVELOPMENT
E 3]
GROUP

“EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Deposits received during the year and
balance af end of year 927,714 500,850
Current portion (927,714) (372,980)
Non-current portion — 127,870

The Group conducts the pre-sale of properties when they are still under
development. As confracted with customers, deposits are paid fo the
Group shortly from the signing of the pre-sale contracts. Such amounts
held by the Group are non-interest-bearing.

Business tax and land appreciation tax on the deposits received are
imposed by the tax authorities, which amounted to approximately
HK$46,160,000 and HK$9,258,0000 (2007: HK$21,246,000
and HK$4,249,000) had been recorded under the caption of “Other
receivables, prepayments and deposits” and “Tax prepaid”, respectively
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
“EEINF S-S 3
2008 2007
Group ERAZ B A=
Effective Effective
inferest interest
rafe HR TERL fafe HR THL
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
Unsecured:
Bank overdrafts — — — 7.8 On demand 1,194
Bank loans 18-6.6  2008-2011 246,254 5.1-6.6  2007-2011 232,037
Trust receipt loans 37-83 2008 43,651 — — —
289,905 233,231
Secured:
Bank overdrafts 53-7.8 On demand 8,443 — — —
Trust receipt loans 60-83 2008 14,420 — — —
Bank loans 3.0-72  2008-2009 119,194 5.2-6.4  2007-2009 393,775
Instalment loans 5.0 2022 91,512 — — —
233,569 393,775
Tofal bank borrowings 523,474 627,006
“ERN\E ZEELE
2008 2007
TiErn T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Analysed info:
Bank borrowings
repayable:
Within one year or on demand 255,075 189,489
In the second year 83,023 204,841
In the third fo fifth years,
inclusive 111,842 142,676
Beyond five years 73,534 —
523,474 627,006
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities (255,075) (189,489
long ferm portion

268,399

437,517

H
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AEB ERRTEENALEERR
#E AMRE S (EBREL475,322,000%8
T (ZTZT+F 1 1,046,456,00078 7T)
ZETEF REHEER T4 R
BEWE (FH3E15) (R -

WS - RRFREHRARAE THEA
ARBZEERERER (W&
38(a)) °

AEEMARTEEHRI DMK
B RITBEZRAEREAFEMR
% o

AKENZEERAEMN I RITEE
REENT
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The Group's secured bank borrowings were secured by certain of its
building, equipment and machinery [note 14] and investment properties
(note 15) with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$475,322,000 (2007: HK$1,046,456,000] at the balance sheet
date.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
(note 38(al).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest af floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in
various currencies are as follows:

—EEN\F —TELF

2008 2007

FET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars 462,813 300,206
Renminbi 41,344 326,800
Yen 7,429 —
Euro 11,888 —
523,474 627,006
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32. IEFERIIE 32. DEFERRED TAX
RAFERN BERBEEREEZ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
ZEIMT as follows:
B GROUP
AR 85
WERE KRRERB
BHERE EAzZEB
mERD Losses
EftIREME  Depreciation available
Revaluation  allowance in for offset
of investment excess of related  against future st
properties  depreciation  taxable profit Total
FET FER FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZFTREMA—H A1 Apil 2006 (264,739) (1,950 160 (266,529)
FRFABHEER/ Deferred tax credited/|charged)

(REREMK) 2 to the income statement

ERTIE (Ha10) during the year (note 10) 51,302 (609) (160) 50,533
ER AR Exchange realignment (8,837] — — (8,837)
RZEZ+HF=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 (222,274) (2,559) — (224,833
R-_ZE+FEMA—H Al Apri\2007 (222,274) (2,559) — (224,833
FRFABHEER/ Deferred tax credited/|charged)

(REZEMK) 2 to the income statement

BRI (B1710) during the year (note 10) 3,012 (2,152) — 860
ELRE Exchange realignment (27,103) — — (27,103)

RZEENE
=A=t+-H At 31 March 2008 (246,365) (4,711) — (251,076)
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DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$326,500,000
(2007: HK$311,901,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax loss can be utilised.

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2007 Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of cerfain of the Group's subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences aftaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
NG
COMPANY
—EENE —ETAF
2008 2007
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
837,465,903 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each 83,746 83,746

Share option scheme

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.
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Purpose

fmE

Z
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Participants

AFETEBREBRNFRER
AHBEBRTRAZAED )

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at the
date of the annual report

BR2REZESRE
Maximum entitlement of each participant

REERELCEARBES 2R
Period within which the securities must be
taken up under an option

RITER LB EBRE & EHR
Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

R A B 30R

Amount payable on acceptance
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted fo
be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any fime.

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

RBBEERZEENERALNA ARRELZERR - ARER
ENEBRELEHRERMERZ A RREBUR -

To encourage eligible participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Company while at the same time allow them to share the
fruits of the Company’s business achieved through their effort and
contribution.

ARRFEEMMBRARZITEAL - EEREE (BEATES
RIEBTESE) -

Executives or employees or directors [including both executive directors
and non-executive directors| of the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries.

40,196,690/ & B A o D #ITIRA 24.8% -
40,196,590 ordinary shares and 4.8% of the issued share capital.

TEEBNMEM12EARRBEARAEBEITREZ 1% -
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

MEFETLANGEEARA  EREMER T NERNK L BERE
ERETFEN  EXBERAKLEZEXIRR -

Determined and notified by the directors fo each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options
subject to the provisions for early fermination thereof.

AESEERAREBBORMFF -

To be determined by the directors and included in the relevant offer letters.

ﬁ o
Nil.

i

H
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34. BRAESHE (&) 34.

ADBZFATERBNOT - (8)
BETEECEE

Basis for defermining the exercise price

AR TEY

The remaining life of the Scheme

RECREY B TR A AMEUR SRR
BRAE LIRFZHER -

FARBFHERMARITE 2 BERER
T

F1) At beginning of year
FARE Granted during the year
FR At end of year

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

REFEE  BXARUTZESENRG ZHE  (IRNEHR
HEBRESR (WEAREXRR) @ EBMRMARKAREBR 2K
TE RMEERREBRERDIDMEEERD  TRRRBZA
RMERMM FHWRTHE

Determined by the directors but must be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and [iii] the average
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.

AEERER BE-T-——FN\AZTLEH-
The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
af shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during
the year:

—Z2EN\F —TELF
2008 2007

il fn#E
TEE BRE RELE fE Ui
Weighted 28 Weighted A
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
BT T BT T
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

B TR

per share per share
0.82 35,000 — —
0.82 35,000 — —
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Number of options

7:
‘000

2,875

625

4,000

1,250

8,750

8,750

8,750

35,000

o BRREZITEEEMER AR E
7 ARABEAREMBECEE M
TEHFE -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding
as at that balance sheet date are as follows:

TEE TSR

Exercise price* Exercise periods
B
HK$
&K
per share

0.82 —_ET+EAARA

E-T——%/\A-+=H

592007 10 23-8-201 1

0.82 —ETHEFEAARE

E-T——%/\H-+=H

6-9-2007 10 23-8-2011

0.82 “EELFAA-TLR

E-T——%/\A-+=H

27-9-2007 10 23-8-2011

0.82 “EE+FN\A=1H

E-T——%/\A=+=H

30-8-2007 t0 23-8-2011

0.82 —EENFNAZ+TMA
E-T——F5/\A=-+=H

24-8-2008 to 23-8-2011

0.82 —EEAFNAZTMA
E-T——F/\AZ-+=H

24-8-2009 to 23-8-2011

0.82 —E-TFNAAZ+tMA
E-T——F5/\A=-+=H

24-8-2010 10 23-8-2011

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$ 15,798,000 (average fair value of HK$0.45 each) of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$7,725,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2008.
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BRETE (8)

FA BRAGEBBREZLFEDLR
REBSMEA —BEARAGE L&t
BB 2 R R AR o TR
TRARZERAZHE

BB (%)

TEHRR 18 (%)
BEKIE (%)
mE R FE (%)
BRERSER (F)
mEFHRE (Bx)

BERERAFHDIABENF 2BE
HERERE ERDEABETRAEL
ReBRETERIBN - BHIKIERR
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EREBERARQA BB
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The fair value of equity-setiled share options granted during the year was
estimated as af the date of grant, using a binomial model, taking info
account the ferms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

—EENE

2008

Dividend yield (%) 0%
Expected volatility (%) 56.4%
Historical volatility (%) 56.4%
Riskfree interest rate (%) 4.012% - 4.166%
Expected life of options (year] 4 years
Weighted average share price [HK$) HK$0.88

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past four years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated info the
measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 35,000,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 35,000,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$3,500,000 and
share premium of HK$25,200,000 [before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
35,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.2% of the Company's shares in issue as at
that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 39 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to
sfatutory reserves which are restricted as fo use.
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(b) Company

BAEMERARAA

A 5 0 ¢ WY ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

REEH/
(BitEE)
RGEER BRERE Refcined
Share #ARS Share profis/  RIRRERE
premium  Conrbuted opfion  [Accumuloted  Proposed fncl &t
account Surplus reserve losses] dividend Totol
Wit TEL TEn TEL TEL TEL TEL
Noe  HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000
At T Aprll 2006 518,437 29950 - 28,748 - 577,135
Proftfor he yeor - - - 1,366 - 1,366
Proposed 2007
finol dividend 12 - - - (12,562 12,562 -
At 31 March 2007
ond
1 Apiil 2007 518,437 29950 - 17,952 12,562 578,501
Loss for the year - - - (5,098 - 5,098
Final 2007 dividend
declored - - - - (12,562 (12,562
Fquitysetled share
opfion arrangemens - - 7725 - - 7725
Interim 2008
diidend peid 12 - - - (8,375) - (8,375
Proposed 2008
finel dividend 12 - - - (12,562 12,562 -
At 31 March 2008 518,437 29950 1725 (8,483 12,562 560,191

& F %

Group reorganisation in 1991 prior fo

Company may make distributions to its members out o
contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant o the
the listing of the Company's
shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the

fthe
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. REMEHRH

(a) 1ERBHEA
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REER AEEREEEBAP
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(b) 1ERABEA
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery [note
investment properties [nofe
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one

14) and its
15 under operating lease arrangements,
o four years. The

ferms of the leases generally also require the tenants and customers fo
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rental adjusiments

according fo the then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its

fenants and customers falling due as follows:

&8
GROUP

—EENE o S

2008 2007

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 64,297 67,101
In the second to

fifth years, inclusive 31,635 25,703

95,932 92,804

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses, staff

quarters and certain machinery under operat

ing lease

arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from six to

sixty months.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had fotal future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due

as follows:
35
GROUP
—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Within one year 11,091 11,888
In the second to
fifth years, inclusive 7,416 8,024
18,507 19912

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at the

balance sheet date (2007: Nil).
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37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments defailed in note 36(b)
above, the Group had the following authorised future capital expenditure
for land use rights, leasehold improvement and machinery which had not
been provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date:

58

GROUP
—EENF —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Authorised, but not contracted for 8,858 13,351
Contracted, but not provided for 198,953 7,309
207,811 20,660

In addition, the Group had contracted, but not provided for, commitments
in respect of construction works relating to properties under development
amounting to HK$577,593,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007:
HK$428,890,000).

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date
(2007 Nil).

h

H
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38. HARE

(a)
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

al

BBZIREBEWT

A BRE Guarantees given fo financial
mKEATSE  institutions in connection with
—REEEX general credit facilities
REBEBLOER  andfinance lease facilities
i T2 &k granted fo subsidiaries

RENREE Guarantees in respect of
miEd 2 &k performance bonds
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(b)

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

%8 A7

CROUP COMPANY
SBENE CTILF CEENF CERLA
2008 2007 2008 2007
T THIT T THIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
— — 705,500 544,158
135,760 141,785 135,760 141,785
135,760 141,785 841,260 685,943

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating fo
the mortgage loans arranged for purchases of certain properties
developed by a subsidiary of the Group and the outstanding
mortgage loans under these guarantees amounted to

HK$281,409,000 (2007: HK$103,796,000).

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon issuance of the relevant
ownership cerfificates.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the directors
consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principal together with the accrued interest and penalty
and therefore no provision has been made for the guarantees in the
financial statements.
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39. BEALRS

(a)

(b)
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(c)

On 2 June 2008, the Group lodged a petition to Shanghai
Number 1 Infermediate People’s Court fo rescind a service confract
signed with a third party for a service fee of up to a maximum
amount of RMB5, 180,000 (approximately HK$5,748,000) as a
result of dispute in the contract terms between the Group and the
third party.

Having considered legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal
counsel, the directors believe that the Group has a good case in
respect of the rescission. Accordingly, the directors consider that no
provision for the service fee is necessary.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Outstanding balance with a related party

Defails of the Group's amount due from its associate as at the balance
sheet date are included in note 20 fo the financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
E 3]
GROUP
—Z2EN\E —TTLHF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Short term employee benefits 28,109 19,785
Employee share option benefits 7,328 —
Postemployment benefits 116 120
Total compensation paid fo key
management personnel 35,553 19,905

(c)

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred rental expenses fo Land Smart
Development Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. David
Chien, an executive director of the Company, in respect of a lease
for an office property at Shanghai of HK$ 1,680,000 (2007:
HK$1,238,000).

A
5

H
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40. ZERE D 2EHM IR 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REEH  BREMIAZKREEN

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

T : at the balance sheet date are as follows:
£z GROUP
ERMEE Financial assets
ZEE\E ZERLE
2008 2007
ELTERA BATERA
BEeBEE BE/eBEE
—BEEE —BEEE
EHR  Financiol assets of BFR  Finonciol assefs of
EUE  fairvalue through SR foirvalue hrough
Loans and profitor loss #it Loons and profit or loss it
receivables  held for trading Totel receivables  held for rading Totol
FiErn FiErn FéEn TEr TEL TEr
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RUBSER Trade receivables 284,000 - 284,000 262,582 - 262,582
BATETABR  Equityinvesiments of foir
LBARE valve through profitor loss - 14,452 14,452 - 876 876
YR Other receivables 166,367 - 166,367 4277 - 4277
TEER Time deposis 28,768 - 28,768 39830 — 39830
XRHES Restricted cash 3,537 — 3,537 352449 — 352449
ReRBITER Cash and bank balances 214,225 - 214,225 211,897 - 211,897
696,897 14,452 711,349 871,035 876 871911
THEE Financial liabilities
—EENE “ZTHF
2008 2007
REBHERAIE REHEK AR
: ZERas LemEE
- Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
at amortised cost  at amortised cost
FET FET
- HKS000  HKS000
ol ENESERREMNRES Tade poyables and retention payables 123,777 180,876
g H it e 5UR Other payables 31,359 16,994
Ty HERATEE Inferestbearing bank borrowings 523,474 627,006
‘: 678,610 824,876
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

COMPANY

Financial assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 19)
Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables

“2ENE —ZELEF
2008 2007
EXREKRFE ERRERTE
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
FET FHET

HK$000 HK$'000
777,208 /78,424

270 Q0

777 478 778,514
—ZEN\FE CZETTLF
2008 2007
TR A A B BR R SH K AR R
ZemBasE ZEMAE

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
at amortised cost  af amortised cost

FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
144,892 119,990

6 10
144,898 120,000
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1. UBEREERBEREE

AEBETIZcRIABERE RIR
787 - BWE SRR E MUK
B~ BB 5 MR 5N L b B HRIR A
RETEE  -ZEEMIAZHBR
BBERRBEAMIARE - BZE S
BRITEBHEZERRMAREZSE
RLBRBIMT - EEEEENE
RZERAR  UBREERE IR
BUBE I

=B e

AREZETRSBEERT S NIRRT
BT AR IR 5 RN K

TRIE e

AN EARER S 2RITHEFHEER
FEFRRBR T ZREENE &
BIIBFEZEERRTA -

AEEEERRIERBARRE
FEFRREMEKTE EEERE
ERBRENESEE  MAKEE
HZERRARY ATEKX - REELE
FERRAESETZER  MEHZ
RROBMELZEARZUFREF - &
BAREEERERKEZERLE
EKRFELEERRCEZEIEH
BRI MR 25 R 261 FE -

AEERARARMAR T HERD
MEREERR  E—FFBRUBR
RIFEEICWE -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, frade and other payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes fo these financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, and
frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high creditratings assigned by international creditrating
agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily aftributable to its frade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure fo
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes
25 and 26 to the financial statements.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
note 38 fo the financial stafements.
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41.

AJREE B) 2 BURKIE o
—EENE 2008
FITEL Bank overdrafts
FITER Bank loans
—EELF 2007
RITEX Bank overdrafts
RITER Bank loans
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Interest rate risk

exposure should the need arise.

S

+#
Increase in
interest rate

3Q

(e

1%
1%

1%
1%

31 March 2008 ZZEN\F=A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLCIES (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly affributable fo
its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to inferest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
interest rafe hedging policy. However, management monitors the Group's
inferest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

The following fable demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in inferest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)

and the Group's equity (before any impact on tax).

£
GROUP
BRBL AT R
B B
Decrease D
in profit Decrease
before tax in equity
TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
84 84
5,150 5,150
12 12
6,258 6,258
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41, BIERBEEEERBEK (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLCIES (Cont'd)

SME R B Foreign exchange risk
AEBETEREE  BRFIRTPEAM The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
REXHK  BERBARZHNET with most of its transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Pataca and
BRPABRARBER - XEF - K& Renminbi. In current year, the Group had bank borrowings denominated
BZR{TEENRERBTHE - in Japanese Yen and Euro.
TRITKEER KA EMEH The following table demonsirates the sensitivity af the balance sheet date
BIFTBZIBRT  KEBZBRBA fo a reasonably possible change in the Japanese Yen and Euro exchange
B (AEBEERGBZAFELR rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
BE) RAER 2 ERE BE RETE tax [due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
KHBRAEA R B 2 UL - and the Group's equity.
£H
GROUP
BX  BRHAEF
-4 B R
Change in Decrease B
exchange in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity
T#T TET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF 2008
WA TTH I Hong Kong dollars weakens
AEsSS% against Japanese Yen 5% 291 291
W TH If Hong Kong dollars weakens
EONEEE against Euro 5% 625 625
—TELHF 2007
A& TTH I Hong Kong dollars weakens T TiE A T
HE 555 against Japanese Yen N/A N/A N/A
i 78 T 5 I Hong Kong dollars weakens TiE TiE i A
BTy against Euro N/A N/A N/A
EEEREERAREMEH  EX Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
Rk - RN AEFTEERLE basis and will enfer info hedges when the need arises.
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4. MERAREEBZEREE (£)  41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLCIES (Cont'd)
B E = A Liquidity risk
AEBEZERREBNARITEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
SEEMEcHBEEIH  BARFET funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group
o AEETHRIETIEESM regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
N ERERHYBERENENS adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
ESER
BB OARBBRR - A THIIK The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities
SERARFRGEEA 2 EREBEE as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted
A : payments, was as follows:
&8 GROUP
“EENF
2008
1218 A
REX D) 1255  SENE
B8 Less than [BCK) Over At
Ondemand 12 months years Syears Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREHEFRENRES Tade payables and refention payables — 13777 - - AR777
HtbERTE Other payables - 31,359 — — 31,359
WERITEE Inferest-bearing bank borrowings 8,443 246,632 194,865 73,534 523,474
8,443 401,768 194,865 73,534 678,610
“BRLE
2007
121A
RER AR 1265  BENLE
BE  lessthan T105 Over &t
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENEZRFRENRES Tode payables and retention payables — 180,876 — — 180,876
AN TR Other payables - 16,993 - - 16,993
MEETEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,194 188,205 437517 — 627,006
1,194 386,164 437,517 — 824,875
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4. BHEREEEERBE (&)

REBELEE (&)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

NG| COMPANY
—EENE
2008

REX 12188 LR 125 5ENE
BE Less than Ttoh Over @t
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
FEL FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RMBLRZHE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 144,892 — — — 144,892
ENE SRR Trade payables — 6 — — 6
144,892 6 — — 144,898

- 2
2007

RER 12@A AR 1E5F  BEPNE
B&  lessthan 105 Over @ar
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
FHET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RMBAR IR Amounts due fo subsidiaries 119,990 — — 119,990
ENE SRR Trade payables — 10 — — 10
119,990 10 — — 120,000

EHEERETHBEBEZLFE

EXAR REAEEREBRARS
LEREERCBARCEEERA
FEEZRAFERSE -

IR A (E 15 7

FCHE B 1% L a2 22 95 IR P 4 BUKF It
BRERBELZBHHEREZESD
FEREZRR R-_ZTNF=A
=+t—H8  AEEREREER R’
BROBREERMNEE (MEE21) M
SIRZBREEBRRER - AEECS L
REDREBEMAEXZMARARE
RED  YREFETSHREME

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets
and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet
approximate to their respective fair values.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from individual equity investments classified as trading equity investments
(note 21} as at 31 March 2008. The Group’s listed investments are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited and are
valued at quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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41. BEEREEEERBE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLCIES (Cont'd)

BRAER R (&) Equity price risk (Cont'd)

TRITEMBEEMEHEFIE 2 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo every 10% decrease in
BAT » ERARREZERN - R the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
B BOHREZEEEHKRNKRE consfant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
NFE10%EE 2 HEM - at the balance sheet date.

RIPEREE  BBEADER

ZAREE 82 R
Carrying Decrease D
amount of equity in profit Decrease
investments before tax in equity
FET FAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF 2008
BRATEFABR Equity investments at fair value
ZBRORE through porfit or loss 14,452 1,445 1,445
S 2 2007
BRATERARS Equity investments at fair value
2R E through profit or loss 876 88 88
EXEH Capital management
AEEEARAERZIBARRERRE The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard
SEARIRKBEREEB ZRAE the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain
BEREFREERAL ZUIHEER healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
WERARERREE - shareholder value.
AEBERBEEERAZEZHERHLE The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo it, in
AEBLEHRAE - REFIAREE light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
AigE  FEEFGABRINTRE structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
2B RERRZERFEITHR return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
- RBE_ZTN\F=A=+—H made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
F_EE+E=ZA=+—-BLEE March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

o EBER  BEREF LSS
EAEH -
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41, BIERBEEEERBEK (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLCIES (Cont'd)

BEXEE (8) Capital management (Cont'd)
$E ERBEABBULETERHER The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
BN MEXRBBHERDAERFE divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
FUAAEBERERAE AEEZHK maintain the gearing ratio no more than 50%. Net debt includes interest-
REEAFERBBELEEN0% ° bearing bank borrowings, frade payables and retention payables, other
Fﬁ%@ REREMERTREE  EBHE payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes total equity of
HEFREMRES - HAMENKEA the Group. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as
BRERERARSER - BRBHER follows:
EEBE NEER BXBRGEX
T
ZBRENE —TTLHF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
MR RITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 523,474 627,006
T E BB Trade payables and
FEMRE® retention payables 123,777 180,876
H At JE A 5RIR Other payables 31,359 16,994
o EHER less: Time deposits (28,768) (39,830)
XREIRS Restricted cash (3,537) (352,449)
BeRRTER Cash and bank balances (214,225) (211,897)
B FRE Net debt 432,080 220,700
aEn Total equity 1,493,384 1,239,732
ERGELE Gearing ratio 29% 18%
42. tkBRER 42. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
BEAEHRETFHRENARRE Certain comparative amounts have been included/revised to conform
Bz25—8 - with the current year's presentation.
43. BB MER 2% E 43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEgERN_TZ\FLHAZ-Z+/\H The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
O R BB BRE - board of directors on 28 July 2008.






